Bylaw 1
repealed
replaced with
Bylaw 5

Bylans 3:e 4 repealed

Schedule "A"

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

BY-LAW NO. 5

BE IT ENACTED as By-Law No. 5 of CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

All words used herein which are defined in the *Condominium Act*, 1998 (as amended from time to time), or the Regulations thereunder or any successor thereto, ("the Act") shall have ascribed to them the meanings set out in the Act.

ARTICLE II MEETINGS OF OWNERS

- (1) Annual Meetings: The Corporation shall hold Annual General Meetings, at such place as may be determined by the Board, in accordance with the provisions of the Act. Other meetings of the owners may also be held in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
- (2) <u>Attendance At Meetings of Owners</u>: Only the following persons are entitled to attend a meeting of owners:
 - (a) Owners of the units (whether or not they have a right to vote at the meeting);
 - (b) Any other person having the right to vote at the meeting;
 - (c) Representatives of owners, as described in Article III (3) below;
 - (d) Directors and Officers of the Corporation;
 - (e) The Auditor of the Corporation;
 - (f) Any person invited to attend the meeting by the Chairperson of the meeting or by ordinary resolution of the meeting;
 - (g) Any person entitled or required to attend the meeting under the provisions of the Act or the Declaration or by-laws of the Corporation or any other governing law or authority.
 - Any question as to a person's right to attend a meeting shall be determined by the Chairperson of the meeting, acting reasonably.
- (3) Representatives: An executor, administrator, committee of a mentally incompetent person, guardian or trustee (and where a corporation acts in such capacity, any person duly appointed as proxy for such corporation), upon filing with the Chairperson sufficient proof of his/her appointment, shall represent the owner or a mortgagee at meetings of the owners, and may vote in the same manner and to the same extent as such owner.

(4) Voting:

- (a) Voting at meetings of owners shall be by show of hands, unless a person entitled to vote at the meeting requests a recorded vote.
- (b) At a meeting of owners, a person entitled to vote at the meeting may request that a recorded vote be held on any item scheduled for a vote, either before or promptly after the vote. A recorded vote can be either a poll, a secret ballot (in which case the voter is not identified on the ballot) or an open ballot (in which case the voter is identified on the ballot). When a recorded vote is requested, the meeting shall decide, by ordinary resolution, whether the recorded vote shall be by way of a poll, a secret ballot or an open ballot. A request for a recorded vote may be withdrawn.
- (c) On any vote by a show of hands, a declaration by the Chairperson that the vote on the question has been carried, or carried by a particular majority, or defeated, is, in the absence of any contradictory evidence, proof of the fact without proof of the number of votes recorded in favour of or against the question.
- (d) Votes may be cast either personally or by proxy, in accordance with the Act. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be filed with the Chairperson of the meeting before any vote is cast under its authority. The Chairperson shall resolve any issue respecting the validity of a proxy.

(5) Chairperson:

- (a) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the Chairperson for any meeting of the owners shall be determined by resolution of the Board, or failing any such resolution, shall be: the President of the Corporation, or if the President is unable or unwilling to chair the meeting, the Vice-President of the Corporation.
- (b) Provided, however, that any other person may be chosen to chair the meeting by ordinary resolution of the meeting.
- (6) Right to Vote: All voting by owners shall be on the basis of one vote per unit. The right of persons to vote at meetings of owners is determined by the Act. Any dispute respecting the right of a person to vote shall be decided by the Chairperson of the meeting, upon such evidence as the Chairperson may deem sufficient.
- (7) <u>Co-Owners</u>: Where the voting rights for a unit are shared by two or more persons (for example, there are two or more owners of the unit), any one or more of those persons may exercise the vote for the unit. Provided, however, that if two or more of those persons decide to exercise the vote, the provisions of the Act shall determine how the vote is to be counted.

ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1) Number and Quorum: The Corporation shall have a Board of five (5) Directors. A quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Board shall be three (3) Directors.

(2) Qualifications:

- (a) Directors must meet the qualifications set out in the Act. They need not be owners.
- (b) If a unit has more than one owner, only one of those owners may be a member of the Board at any time.
- (c) In addition to the qualifications for Directors, which are set out in the Act, at least four Directors shall be members of the corporation.

- (d) A person immediately ceases to be a Director if the person fails to attend three consecutive Board Meetings without providing an excuse which is reasonably satisfactory to the Board.
- (e) A person immediately ceases to be a Director if the person is an owner and any contributions payable in respect of the owner's unit have been in arrears for 30 days.

(3) Election and Term:

(a) The Directors shall be elected in each case for a term of two years. However, Directors' terms shall expire at the Annual General Meeting of the relevant year. The Directors' terms are staggered. As at the confirmation of this by-law, the Directors' terms are as follows:

Number of Directors	Year of Expiration of Term		
3	2004		
2	2005		

- (b) If a Directorship is vacated before expiration of the Director's term (whether by removal, resignation, death or otherwise), the vacancy may be filled, by appointment and/or election in accordance with the Act.
- (c) In the event of an election to fill Directorships with terms expiring in different years, the person(s) receiving the most votes shall be elected to the Directorships with the longer remaining term(s).
- (d) When a Director's term expires, he or she shall retire, but shall be eligible for reelection.

(4) Calling of Meetings:

- (a) Board meetings may be called by resolution of the Board. In such cases, the Secretary or another person designated by the Board shall give notice of the meeting in accordance with sub-paragraph (c) hereof.
- (b) Board meetings may also be called by any two Directors. In such cases, the notice shall be signed by each of the two Directors and one of the two Directors shall give notice of the meeting in accordance with sub-paragraph (c) hereof.
- (c) Written notice of Board meetings shall be given to all Directors at least 48 hours before the meeting. Any such Notice may be given in accordance with Article VIII of this by-law.
- (d) A meeting of the Directors may be held by teleconference or another form of communications system that allows the Directors to participate concurrently, provided all Directors of the Corporation consent to the means used for holding the meeting.
- (e) The Board may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings at a place and hour to be named. A copy of any resolution of the Board fixing a place and time for such regular meetings shall be sent to each Director, but no other notice shall be required for any such meeting.
- (f) No notice of a meeting shall be necessary if all the Directors are present and consent to the holding of such meeting or if those absent have waived notice of or otherwise signified in writing their consent to the holding of such meeting.
- (5) <u>Indemnification of Directors</u>: Every Director and every Officer of the Corporation and the person's heirs, executors, administrators, estate trustees and other legal personal

representatives shall from time to time be indemnified and saved harmless by the Corporation from and against:

- (a) any liability and all costs, charges and expenses that the Director or Officer sustains or incurs in respect of any action, suit or proceeding that is proposed or commenced against the person for or in respect of anything that the person has done, omitted to do or permitted in respect of the execution of the duties of office; and
- (b) all other costs, charges and expenses that the person sustains or incurs in respect of the affairs of the Corporation.

No Director or Officer shall be indemnified in respect of any liability, costs, charges or expenses that the person sustains or incurs in or about an action, suit or other proceeding as a result of which the person is adjudged to be in breach of the duty to act honestly and in good faith.

ARTICLE IV OFFICERS

- (1) <u>Elected Officers</u>: At the first meeting of the Board after each election of Directors, the Board shall elect from among its members a President. In default of such election the then incumbent, if a member of the Board, shall hold office until his/her successor is elected.
- (2) Appointed Officers: From time to time the Board shall appoint a Secretary, a Vice-President, a Treasurer and such other Officers as the Board may determine, including one or more assistants to any of the Officers so appointed. The Officers so appointed may, but need not, be members of the Board. One person may hold more than one office and if the same person holds both the office of Secretary and the office of Treasurer he/she may be known as Secretary-Treasurer.
- (3) <u>Term of Office</u>: In the absence of written agreement to the contrary, the Board may remove at its pleasure, and replace, any Officer of the Corporation.
- (4) <u>President</u>: The President shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Board and shall be charged with the general supervision of the business and affairs of the Corporation.
- (5) <u>Vice-President</u>: During the absence of the President his/her duties may be performed and his/her powers may be exercised by the Vice-President.
- (6) Secretary: Subject to this by-law and subject to any resolution of the Board, the Secretary shall give or cause to be given all notices required to be given to the Directors, auditors, mortgagees and all others entitled thereto; he/she shall use his/her best efforts to attend all meetings of the Directors and of the owners and shall enter or cause to be entered in books kept for that purpose minutes of all proceedings at such meetings; he/she shall be the custodian of the seal of the Corporation as well as all books, papers, records, documents and other instruments belonging to the Corporation and he/she shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board.
- (7) Treasurer: The Treasurer shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate books of account in which shall be recorded all receipts and disbursements of the Corporation and under the direction of the Board shall control the deposit of money, the safekeeping of securities and the disbursements of the funds of the Corporation; he/she shall render to the Board at the meeting thereof or whenever required of him/her an account of all of his/her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial position of the Corporation and he/she shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be prescribed by the Board.
- (8) <u>Variation of Duties</u>: From time to time, the Board may, by resolution, vary, add to, or limit the powers and duties of any Officer or Officers, including any of the duties described in this by-law.

- (9) <u>Compensation</u>: Compensation of all Officers and employees of the Corporation shall be fixed by the Directors. This provision shall not preclude the Board of Directors from employing a Director as an employee of the Corporation nor preclude any Director entering into a contract with the Corporation for the management of the Corporation.
- (10) Past President: The immediate past President of the Corporation shall be an ex officio member of the Board with no voting rights for a period of one year from the date of ceasing to be President of the Corporation; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply if the immediate past President is re-elected to the Board.

ARTICLE V BANKING ARRANGEMENTS & EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS

- (1) <u>Banking Arrangements</u>: The banking business of the Corporation or any part thereof shall be transacted with such bank or trust company as the Board may by resolution designate from time to time and all such banking business or any part thereof shall be transacted on the Corporation's behalf by such one or more Officers or other persons as the Board may by resolution designate.
- (2) Execution of Instruments: Deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts and obligations on behalf of the Corporation may be signed by any two Directors. However, the Board may at any time and from time to time, by resolution, direct the manner in which and the person or persons by whom any particular deed, transfer, contract or other document or any class of deeds, transfers, contracts or documents of the Corporation may or shall be signed.

ARTICLE VI FINANCIAL YEAR

The financial year of the Corporation shall end on the 31st day of October in each year, or such other date as the Board may by resolution determine.

ARTICLE VII NOTICE

- Board Meetings: Notices of Board meetings shall be given in the manner set out in the Act.
- (2) Owner's Meetings: Notices of Owner's meetings shall be given in the manner set out in the Act.
- Other Notices by the Corporation: Subject to the Act, any other notice, communication or document required to be given or delivered by the Corporation shall be sufficiently given by delivering it personally, or delivering it to the address noted for the addressee in the record of names and addresses kept by the Corporation in accordance with the Act, or by sending it by ordinary mail, courier delivery, facsimile transmission or electronic communication addressed to the addressee at the latest address shown in the records of the Corporation for the addressee.
- (4) Notice to the Board or Corporation: Subject to the Act, any notice, communication or document to be given to the Board or the Corporation shall be sufficiently given if sent by ordinary mail addressed to it at the address for service of the Corporation set out in the records of the Corporation.
- (5) When Notice Effective: Any notice delivered by mail shall be deemed to have been received and effective on the first business day following the mailing thereof. All other notices shall be deemed to be received on the date they are sent.

(6) Omissions and Errors: The accidental omission to give any notice to anyone entitled thereto or the non-receipt of such notice or any error in any notice not affecting the substance thereof shall not invalidate any action taken at any meeting held pursuant to such notice or otherwise founded thereon.

ARTICLE VIII ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF COMMON EXPENSES

- (1) Duties of the Board: The Board shall from time to time, and at least annually, prepare a budget for the property and determine by estimate the amount of common expenses for the next ensuing fiscal year, or remainder of the current fiscal year, as the case may be. The Board shall allocate and assess such common expenses as set out in the budget for such period among the owners, according to the proportions in which they are required to contribute to the common expenses as set forth in the Declaration. The Board shall advise all owners promptly in writing of the amount of common expenses payable by each of them respectively determined as aforesaid, and shall deliver copies of each budget on which common expenses are based to all owners entered in the record kept pursuant to the Act.
- (2) <u>Duties of the Owners</u>: Each owner shall be obligated to pay to the Corporation, or as it may direct, the amount of such assessment as follows:
 - (a) The owner's monthly common expenses shall be paid in advance on the first day of each and every month next following delivery of such assessment until such time as a new assessment shall have been delivered to such owner.
 - (b) Prior to the commencement of each fiscal year of the Corporation, each owner shall furnish to the Corporation a set of twelve post-dated cheques, or shall arrange for pre-authorized payments, on a system run by the Corporation, if the Corporation offers this service, covering the standard monthly payments due by the owner during the fiscal year on account of common expenses, or in order to facilitate collection shall pay the monthly payments in such other manner as may be directed by the Corporation.
- (3) Special Assessments: The Board may make special assessments when the Board does not have sufficient funds to meet expenditures which have been incurred or which it is anticipated will be incurred. Notice of any such special assessment shall include a written statement setting out the reasons for the assessment and the assessment shall be payable by each owner within ten (10) days after the owner has been given notice of the assessment or within such further period of time and in such instalments as the Board may determine.

(4) Default:

- (a) Arrears of any payments required to be made to the Corporation under the provisions of this Article or under the provisions of the Act shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum and shall be compounded monthly until paid. For each late payment or non-payment of common expenses (whether related to a monthly payment or a special assessment), there shall be added to the amount owing with respect to the particular unit an administration fee of \$25.00, or such other amount as may be determined by resolution of the Board.
- (b) In addition to any remedies or liens provided by the Act, if any owner is in default in payment of any assessment levied against him/her, the Board may retain a solicitor on behalf of the Corporation to enforce collection and there shall be added to any amount found due all costs of such solicitor as between a solicitor and his/her own client and such costs shall be collectible against the defaulting owner in the same manner as common expenses.
- (c) All payments upon account of common expense arrears shall be first applied to the arrears which were first due with respect to the particular unit.

ARTICLE IX POWERS OF THE CORPORATION

In addition to the powers of the Corporation set forth in the Act and the Declaration, or by way of clarification of those powers, the powers of the Corporation shall include the following:

- (1) to settle, adjust, compromise or refer to arbitration any claim or claims which may be made upon or which may be asserted on behalf of the Corporation;
- (2) to borrow such amounts as in its discretion are necessary or desirable in order to fulfill the objects and duties of the Corporation, and to secure any such loan by mortgage, pledge or charge of any asset owned by the Corporation, and to add the repayment of such loan to the common expenses, subject to approval of each such borrowing or loan by the unit owners at a meeting duly called for the purpose if the expenditure is not listed in the Corporation's budget for the current fiscal year;
- (3) to retain and hold any securities or other property, whether real or personal, which shall be received by the Corporation;
- (4) to lease any part or parts of the common elements, or grant a licence or easement over any part or parts of the common elements, except such over which any owner has the exclusive use;
- (5) to employ a manager, and such other persons as the Board considers advisable, on terms acceptable to the Board, to assist the Corporation in the fulfilment of its objects and duties;
- to appoint committees comprised of such persons (not necessarily owners) as the Board may from time to time determine, to carry out such tasks or functions as may be determined by the Board;
- (7) to obtain and maintain fidelity bonds, where obtainable, for Directors, Officers, any manager and any employees of the Corporation handling or responsible for the Corporation's moneys or securities. The premiums on any such bonds shall be paid by the Corporation.

ARTICLE X USE OF COMMON ELEMENTS BY NON-RESIDENTS

Only the occupants of the units and their invitees shall be entitled to use and enjoy the common elements and assets of the corporation, subject to the following. Owners who are not occupants shall be entitled to use the common elements and assets only to the extent reasonably required to allow landlords to exercise or fulfill their rights and responsibilities as landlord.

ARTICLE XI INDEMNIFICATION BY OWNERS

Each owner shall indemnify and save harmless the Corporation from and against any loss, costs, damage, injury, claim or liability whatsoever which the Corporation may suffer or incur (including all related legal costs incurred by the Corporation) resulting from or caused by a breach of the Act, or the Corporation's Declaration, By-Laws or Rules (as amended from time to time), or by any act or omission, of such owner, his/her family, guests, servants, agents or occupants of his/her unit. All such amounts owing to the Corporation by an owner shall be added to the common expenses attributable to the owner's unit and shall be recoverable as such.

ARTICLE XII UNIT INSPECTIONS

This Article is supplementary to the Corporation's right of access set forth in the Condominium Act, 1998 and the Declaration.

- (1) Entry: The Corporation may enter any unit, upon reasonable notice, in order to carry out the objects and duties of the Corporation. Note, however, that in the case of an emergency it may be reasonable for the Corporation to gain immediate access to a unit (i.e., without notice).
- (2) Regular Inspections: The Corporation may also conduct "regular inspections" as follows:
 - (a) The Corporation may conduct scheduled inspections and maintenance at predetermined intervals each year. These inspections are conducted for the following purposes:
 - (i) Assessment of the condition of components of the common elements or other conditions which may affect the common elements or other units;
 - (ii) Visual review of any condition which might violate the provisions of the *Condominium Act*, 1998 or the Corporation's Declaration, By-laws and Rules.
- (3) <u>Unacceptable Conditions</u>: If, upon inspection of exclusive use common elements or the unit, the Corporation discovers any condition which it considers unacceptable, the Corporation may:
 - (a) Take steps to remedy the condition at the expense of the owner of the unit. In such cases, all such costs and also any costs incurred by the corporation in relation to the inspection, shall be added to the owner's common expenses;
 - (b) Give notice of the condition to the owner of the unit;
 - (c) Take such other steps as the Board of Directors deems appropriate.

However, the owner of the unit, including any purchaser of the unit, shall be entirely and exclusively responsible for any such condition whether or not the condition has been detected by the Corporation, whether or not the Corporation has given any notice of the condition to the owner or to the purchaser, and whether or not the Corporation has taken any other steps related to the condition. In other words, no steps taken by the Corporation hereunder shall relieve the owner, including any purchaser of the unit, from full responsibility for the condition of the unit and any modifications made to the unit or the common elements by any owner of the unit, including any prior owner of the unit. It is the duty of every owner to make or arrange all necessary inspections in order to ascertain the condition of the unit and any such modifications to the common elements and then to take any appropriate corrective action.

ARTICLE XIII NOTICE TO CORPORATION OF DEFECTS, SYMPTOMS OR ACCIDENTS

Owners shall give the Corporation prompt written notice of the following:

- (1) any structural, mechanical or other defect affecting the property, including any defect in the water pipes, heating system or electrical systems, etc.;
- (2) any accident occurring on or in relation to the property; and
- (3) any symptom of a possible problem, such as water penetration, water seepage or leakage, cracks, unusual sounds or noises, smoke or odours.

ARTICLE XIV REPEAL OF BY-LAW NO. 1

By-Law No. 1 of the Corporation is hereby repealed.

ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS

- (1) <u>Invalidity</u>: The invalidity of any part of this by-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance thereof.
- (2) <u>Waiver</u>: No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this by-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- (3) <u>Headings</u>: The headings in the body of this by-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
- (4) <u>Alterations</u>: This by-law or any part thereof may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Declaration.

The foregoing by-law is hereby passed by the Directors and confirmed by the owners pursuant to the *Condominium Act* of Ontario.

DATED this 18th day of March, 2003.

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

Print Name: Dan Rivet Print Title: President

I have authority to bind the Corporation.

Version 8 - October 2002

O All rights reserved.

This document was prepared by Nelligan O'Brien Payne LLP for CCC #443 based on a thorough review of all relevant documentation and the specific circumstances of this condominium. This document may not be appropriate for another condominium. Please note: The form from which this document was prepared is regularly revised and updated.

N:\REC\C\CCC443\Block Fee\comprehensive ByLaw.doc

Nelligan O'Brien Payne LLP May 2003

Section 98 By-law - Acknowledgement Version - Procedures

Now that you have passed a Section 98 By-law - respecting modifications to the common elements - what are the procedures to be followed?

We begin with the following overview respecting the by-law:

The by-law is designed to meet the requirements of Section 98 of the Condominium Act (respecting common element modifications by owners), without requiring separate registrations for each requested modification. The idea is that the one-time registration of the by-law can meet the registration requirement. It is our view that the one-time registration of the by-law is sufficient, and that separate registration for each modification is not required. This is not certain and has not yet been tested in Court, but again we believe that there are good grounds to support this approach.

Owners who receive permission to make one of the modifications listed in the by-law must still sign the Acknowledgement form (which is a Schedule to the by-law). We explain in greater detail as follows:

Each time an owner wishes to make one of the "permissible" modifications listed in the By-law, that owner must take the following steps:

- 1. The owner must obtain the written consent of the Board to proceed. The Board would decide this at a Board meeting and, if approval is forthcoming, send a note to the owner confirming that the owner can proceed subject to signing an Acknowledgement form in accordance with the bylaw. [Note: The change must also comply with any specifications or other requirements established by the Board. In most cases, if the Board has approved general specifications or other requirements for particular modifications, those specifications or other requirements could be included in the corporation's rules.]
- 2. The owner must sign the Acknowledgement which is Schedule "1" to the By-law.
- 3. Again, those Acknowledgement forms are not registered. You will keep them in the unit file for the particular unit and attach a copy to any status certificate issued for that unit. Also, in paragraph 23 of the status certificate, you would then refer to the fact that there is an agreement under Section 98 for the particular unit. You would go on to say that "the terms of the agreement are set out in the corporation's By-law No. 6 and the particular modification which has been carried out is noted in the signed Acknowledgement form Schedule '1' to the By-law which is attached to this status certificate".

Paragraph 23 of the status certificate should also go on to say as follows: "Modifications listed in Bylaw No. 6 made prior to the arrival of the current Condominium Act (May 5, 2001) are governed by all of the terms and conditions listed in that By-law, but the corporation does not have any Acknowledgement form for those modifications (carried out under the previous Condominium Act.). Such forms are only required for modifications made under the current Condominium Act. Purchasers should check to see whether or not any such modifications have been made and should make note of the terms and conditions in By-law No. 6, because those terms and conditions apply to all owners of the units from time to time."

N:\REC\C\CCC443\Block Fee\note re procedures.doc

Schedule "A"

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

BY-LAW NO. 6

BE IT ENACTED as By-Law No. 6 (being a by-law respecting common element modifications) of CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

All words used herein which are defined in the Condominium Act, 1998, as amended, or any successor thereto (the "Act"), shall have ascribed to them the meanings as set out in the Act.

ARTICLE II PURPOSE OF THIS BY-LAW

This bylaw is being passed for the following purposes:

- 1. To confirm the types of common element modifications which owners are permitted to make, subject to the terms and conditions described in this by-law.
- 2. To record the Board's approval of the modifications, subject to the terms and conditions in this by-law.
- 3. To provide any required notice to owners and required voting approval for the modifications.
- 4. To establish the terms and conditions which apply to any such modification and which accordingly constitute an agreement between the owner(s) and the Corporation pursuant to the Act and this by-law.

ARTICLE III PERMITTED MODIFICATIONS

Unit owners may make any one or more of the following modifications to the common elements, subject in each case to the terms and conditions set forth in Article IV hereof:

- 1. All common element modifications made in connection with the installation of a gas fireplace using the existing chimney with an appropriate liner.
- 2. Exclusive use patio areas constructed of patio stones.
- 3. Municipal address numbers.
- 4. Storm doors.
- 5. Central air conditioners installed in the exclusive use yard area.
- 6. Decks in exclusive use yard areas.
- 7. Eavestroughing.
- Window upgrades.
- 9. Door upgrades.
- 10. Interlocking stone walkways or patios.
- 11. Landscaping including planting of bushes and trees, which may grow no taller than 6 feet, in exclusive use yard areas.
- 12. Vents for high efficiency gas furnaces.
- External natural gas outlets.
- 14. Physical aids for the disabled.

- 15. Composters in exclusive use areas.
- 16. Satellite dishes.
- 17. Window air conditioners.
- Utility Sheds in exclusive use yard areas.
- 19. Fences.
- 20. Hedges.

ARTICLE IV TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The within approval of the modifications described in Article III (herein called the "modification(s)") is subject to the following terms and conditions and any unit owner carrying out, or having carried out, any such modification(s) agrees with the Corporation and all other unit owners, on his/her own behalf and on behalf of his/her successors and assigns, to be bound by and to comply with all such terms and conditions, namely:

- No modification shall be made or kept except with the prior written approval of the Corporation, such approval to be at the sole discretion of the Board. The modification shall comply with all plans, drawings, specifications, colours and/or other requirements as may be approved in writing by the Board or as may be set forth in the By-laws, Rules or Policies of the Corporation. Furthermore, prior to proceeding with the modification, the owner shall obtain and provide to the Corporation such permits and professional certificates as may be requested in writing by the Board.
- 2. All modifications shall comply with all municipal, provincial and federal legislation, including all municipal By-Laws and building regulations. The owner shall investigate and determine all occupational health and safety requirements that apply to any work related to the modification (including work related to installation, repair or maintenance of the modification) and shall ensure that all of those requirements are met.
- 3. The modification shall be maintained and repaired in a good and safe condition by the owner at the owner's sole expense. The Corporation shall not be responsible to maintain or repair the modification, nor shall the Corporation be responsible to obtain any insurance with respect to the modification. The modification shall be at the sole risk and expense of the owner and the modification shall be owned by the owner.
- 4. In the event that the owner fails to maintain or repair the modification as required herein, the Corporation may, at its option and after notifying the owner and affording the owner a reasonable opportunity to effect such maintenance or repair, carry out such maintenance or repair and all costs and expenses incurred by the Corporation in arranging and carrying out the maintenance or repair shall be payable to the Corporation by the owner and shall be collectible in accordance with Article IV(7) hereof.
- 5. The owner shall obtain insurance against any and all risks of damage or harm to persons or property or any other liability which may arise in connection with the modification. The owner shall provide to the Corporation proof satisfactory to the Corporation that such insurance is in place within a reasonable period of time following any request by the Corporation for such proof.
- 6. The owner shall fully and completely indemnify and save harmless the Corporation from and against any and all loss, costs, expenses, claims or damages, of whatever kind and however arising, as a result of a breach of any of these terms and conditions, or otherwise relating to the modification, including any claims against the Corporation for damages resulting from, caused by, or associated with the modification. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the owner shall be responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in order to remove the modification to afford the Corporation access to any portion of the property (for the purposes of carrying out repair or maintenance, or for any other reason) as well as reinstatement of the modification (if desired), and the Corporation shall have no obligation for any damage which may be caused to the modification as a result of any such required access.

- 7. Any amounts owing to the Corporation by the owner as a result of these terms and conditions shall be added to the owner's common expenses and shall be collectible against the owner, together with all reasonable costs, charges and expenses incurred by the Corporation in connection with the collection or attempted collections of the amount, in the same manner as common expenses, including by way of Condominium lien in accordance with the *Condominium Act*.
- 8. In addition to any other rights and remedies available to the Corporation hereunder or otherwise, in the event that the owner contravenes any of the within terms and conditions, the Corporation shall be entitled, upon ten days written notice to the owner, to remove the modification and to restore the common elements to their previous condition. All costs and expenses associated with such removal and restoration shall be the responsibility of the owner and shall be payable by the owner to the Corporation, and collectible in accordance with Article IV(7) hereof.
- 9. The modification shall be carried out at the sole risk and expense of the owner.
- Any notice required hereunder may be delivered as set out in the by-laws of the corporation.
- 11. All of these terms and conditions shall be binding upon the successors, assigns and transferees of the owner.
- 12. Except where otherwise indicated, all of these terms and conditions shall similarly apply to any modification(s) carried out prior to the enactment of this bylaw.

NOTES:

- Any other modifications to the common elements not listed herein may require separate approval by a vote of the unit owners in accordance with the Act, and the Declaration.
- The Corporation may carry out changes to the common elements provided it complies with the requirements in the Act.

ARTICLE V ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Any owner wishing to carry out a Modification after May 5, 2001 shall sign an Acknowledgement in the form attached as Schedule "1". The Acknowledgement shall be held by the Corporation in the owner's unit file and the Corporation shall attach a copy of the Acknowledgement to any status certificate issued regarding the unit.

ARTICLE VI PREVIOUS BY-LAWS OR RULES

Where any provision in this by-law is inconsistent with the provisions of any previous by-law or Rule, the provisions of this by-law shall prevail and the previous by-law or Rule shall be deemed to be amended accordingly.

ARTICLE VII MISCELLANEOUS

- 1. <u>Invalidity</u>: The invalidity of any part of this by-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance thereof.
- 2. <u>Waiver</u>: No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this by-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- 3. <u>Headings</u>: The headings in the body of this by-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
- 4. <u>Alterations</u>: This by-law or any part thereof may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Declaration.

The foregoing by-law is hereby passed by the Directors and confirmed by the owners pursuant to the *Condominium Act*, 1998 of Ontario.

DATED this 18th day of March, 2003.

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

Name: Dan Rivet Title: Presickent.

I have authority to bind the Corporation.

© All rights reserved.

This document was prepared by Nelligan O'Brien Payne LLP for CCC #443 based on a thorough review of all relevant documentation and the specific circumstances of this condominium. This document may not be appropriate for another condominium.

Please note: The form from which this document was prepared is regularly revised and updated.

SCHEDULE "1"

Acknowledgement Respecting Modification to Common Elements

TO:	CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443
	("the Corporation"
FRC	M:
	(please print name(s))
	("the Owner")
WHI	EREAS:
1.	The Owner is the registered owner of Unit , Level 1, Carleton Condominium Plan No. 443.
2.	Please choose one of the following [delete all that do not apply]:
	 (a) The Owner is not a spouse. (b) The Owners are spouses of one another. (c) The Owner is a spouse. The person consenting below is the Owner's spouse.
3.	The Owner wishes to carry out the following modification to the common elements:
	(please print)
	("the Modification")
4.	The Modification is item number(s) in Article III of By-Law No. 6 of the Corporation.
5.	(If appropriate, add:) Additional detail respecting the modification is contained in the drawings and/or specifications attached as Appendix "1".

NOW THEREFORE:

The Owner acknowledges that the Owner is bound by all of the terms and conditions listed in Article IV of the Corporation's By-Law No. 6 and that the said terms and conditions constitute an agreement between the Corporation and the Owner as stated in that By-law. The Owner also agrees to comply with all other By-Laws and Rules of the Corporation that apply to the Modification.

	CADIETO	CONDONATION	
	CARLETO	CONDOMINIUM CO	ORPORATION NO. 4
	Per:		
		Name: Title:	

	Per:		
		Name: Title:	
		I/Wa haya authoris to 1: 1:1 G	
		I/We have authority to bind the Co	rporation
Vitness		0	
1111000		Owner	
Vitness			
runess		Owner	
itness		Spouse (where r	equired)

Schedule "A"

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

BY-LAW NO. 7

BE IT ENACTED as By-Law No. 7 (being a by-law respecting Directors' and Officers' Liability Insurance) of CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443 (referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

Article I DEFINITIONS

All words used herein which are defined in the *Condominium Act, 1998*, or any successor ("the Act") shall have ascribed to them the meanings set out in the Act as amended from time to time.

Article II DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Corporation shall obtain and maintain Directors' and Officers' Liability Insurance, having coverage not less than the Corporation's General Liability Insurance, but otherwise on terms acceptable to the Board, subject to the following:

- (a) The policy shall provide for coverage on a full claims-made basis, (covering any claims made during the term of the policy arising out of any "wrongful act" since the registration of the Corporation on October 27, 1988). The policy shall therefore provide insurance protection for the actions of all past and present Directors and Officers of the Corporation;
- (b) The policy shall provide coverage on identical terms to all past and present Directors and Officers of the Corporation and they all shall be insureds under the policy. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the policy shall contain no exclusions which apply only to certain past or present Directors and Officers of the Corporation, and therefore not to all past or present Directors of the Corporation;
- (c) The Corporation shall be an insured under the policy, and the coverage shall extend to any claims under the policy for which the Corporation may be required to afford indemnity under the provisions of the Act and/or the Corporation's bylaws;
- (d) The policy shall not specifically exclude coverage for claims asserted by the Corporation;
- (e) A copy of this by-law shall be provided to the Directors' and Officers' Liability Insurer and shall be attached to any application for Directors' and Officers' Liability Insurance;
- (f) The Corporation's manager, if any, may be included as an additional insured under the policy.

The Deductible on the Corporation's Insurance Policy

Provide Notice to Owners and Purchasers

mend that condominium corporations advise owners, in writing, of the amount of the corporation's insurance policy and then promptly provide written notice, to all f any change in the deductible.

dard practice, it would also be a good idea to simply include this information with each .ce.]

good idea whether or not the corporation has passed an insurance deductibles by-law.

ay be held responsible for the deductible - either under the terms of the Condominium der more extensive circumstances set out in an insurance deductibles by-law. In either a good idea to ensure that owners are aware of the amount of the deductible on the n's policy. [If the corporation has passed a by-law, the by-law will often say that the n is <u>obligated</u> to give this notice to the owners.]

good idea to include this information (the amount of the deductible) with any status issued by the corporation to prospective purchasers and mortgagees. Perhaps the vay to achieve this is to ask the insurer to include the information, about the deductible, trance certificate (a copy of which must be attached to every status certificate).

C443\Block Fee\note re notice to owners.doc

Schedule "A"

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

BY-LAW NO. 8

BE IT ENACTED as By-Law No. 8 (being a by-law respecting insurance deductibles) of Carleton Condominium Corporation No. 443 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

Article I DEFINITIONS

All words used herein which are defined in the *Condominium Act*, 1998, or any successor, ("the Act") shall have ascribed to them the meanings set out in the Act as amended from time to time.

Article II SECTION 105(3) OF THE ACT

This by-law is passed pursuant to Section 105(3) of the Act, to extend the circumstances under which a deductible loss, as described in Article III, shall be added to the common expenses payable for an owner's unit.

Article III INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLES

- (1) Property insurance for the units and common elements (excluding improvements) is obtained and maintained by the Corporation (the "Master Policy"), but is subject to a loss deductible clause.
- (2) The Master Policy accordingly does not cover any loss, or portion of a loss, falling within such deductible. Responsibility for any such loss shall be determined as follows:
 - (a) Any deductible loss relating to damage to a unit (whether or not there has been an act or omission by the owner or lessee of the unit) shall be the responsibility of the owner of the unit, and shall be added to the common expenses payable for the owner's unit [in accordance with Article III (4)].
 - (b) Any other deductible loss shall be the responsibility of the Corporation.
- (3) Notwithstanding the foregoing,
 - (a) each unit owner shall indemnify and save harmless the Corporation and all other owners from any deductible loss (under the Master Policy) related to damage resulting from an act or omission of the owner, or his or her guests, agents or occupants of the unit. (Accordingly, if any such damage is caused to any part of the property, any related deductible loss under the Master Policy shall be added to the common expenses payable for the owner's unit, in accordance with Article III(4)).
 - (b) the Corporation shall indemnify and save harmless each unit owner from any deductible loss resulting from an act or omission of the Corporation or its directors, officers, agents or employees.
- (4) Any amounts owing to the Corporation by a unit owner by virtue of the terms of this bylaw shall be added to the common expenses payable by such unit owner and shall be collectible as such, including by way of condominium lien.

- (5) Each owner shall obtain and maintain insurance, including personal liability insurance, covering the owners' risks as set forth in this by-law.
- (6) The Corporation shall promptly provide written notice of any change in the deductible related to the Master Policy to all owners.

Article IV MISCELLANEOUS

- (1) <u>Invalidity</u>: The invalidity of any part of this by-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance hereof.
- (2) <u>Waiver</u>: No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this by-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- (3) <u>Headings</u>: The headings in the body of this by-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
- (4) <u>Alterations</u>: This by-law or any part thereof may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Declaration.

The foregoing by-law is hereby passed by the Directors and confirmed by the owners pursuant to the *Condominium Act*, 1998, of Ontario.

DATED this 18th day of March, 2003.

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

Print Name: Down Rivet Print Title: President

I have authority to bind the Corporation

Version 5 - March, 2002

C All rights reserved.

This document was prepared by Nelligan O'Brien Payne LLP for CCC no. ##443 based on a thorough review of all relevant documentation and the specific circumstances of this condominium. This document may not be appropriate for another condominium. Please note: The form from which this document was prepared is regularly revised and updated.

► N:\REC\C\CCC443\Block Fee\Bylaw 8 - insurance deductible.doc

Schedule "A"

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

BY-LAW NO. 10

WHEREAS Carleton Condominium Corporation No. 443 and a majority of its owners wish to establish an expeditious cost-effective procedure for achieving fair and equitable resolutions to certain disputes;

BE IT ENACTED as By-Law No. 10 (being a by-law respecting dispute resolution procedures) of Carleton Condominium Corporation No. 443 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

All words used herein which are defined in the *Condominium Act, 1998*, as amended, or any successor thereto (the "Act"), shall have ascribed to them the meanings as set out in the Act.

ARTICLE II APPLICATION OF THESE PROCEDURES

- 1. <u>Application</u>: The mediation and arbitration procedures described in this by-law shall apply to any disagreement between the Corporation and its owners where mediation and/or arbitration is mandated by the Act. These disagreements shall be referred to hereinafter as the "disputes".
- 2. <u>Notice:</u> Any notice required by this by-law shall be delivered in accordance with the Declaration and By-Laws for the Corporation.
- 3. Obligation to Co-operate: The mediator, arbitrator, and all parties shall make every effort to fully co-operate in all of the procedures described herein, to proceed with haste and to act in advance of any time constraint set out in this by-law. Any failure of the parties to so co-operate will be taken into account in any costs award.

ARTICLE III MEDIATION PROCEDURES

- 1. Notice of Dispute: Any party to the dispute may initiate these procedures by delivering to the other parties a Notice of Dispute indicating their intention to proceed to mediation. The notice shall describe briefly the issues in dispute, and shall request a premediation meeting as described in paragraph 2 below.
- 2. Pre-mediation Meeting: A meeting of all parties to the dispute shall be held within seven (7) days of the Notice of Dispute being delivered. All parties shall co-operate in arranging such a meeting. The meeting shall be for the purpose of negotiating in good faith a resolution of the dispute and/or to appoint a mediator as described in paragraph 3. This meeting shall not involve a mediator.
- 3. <u>Appointment of Mediator</u>: If the dispute is not resolved at the pre-mediation meeting, the parties shall jointly appoint a mutually-acceptable independent mediator.
 - The mediator shall be given a copy of this by-law.
- 4. <u>Mediation Deemed to Fail</u>: If the parties are unable to agree upon a mediator or otherwise fail to appoint a mediator, the mediation will be deemed to have failed sixty (60) days after the Notice of Dispute was delivered, or such earlier date as the parties may agree.

- 5. <u>Time and Place for Mediation</u>: The mediator shall schedule the date, time and location for a mediation conference after consulting with the parties. The mediation conference shall be scheduled for the earliest date which is reasonably suitable to all parties, but shall in any event be no later than thirty (30) days following the appointment of the mediator.
- 6. Representation: Unless the parties agree otherwise, any party may be represented at the mediation conference by a lawyer or agent, but any party so represented must give notice, including the name and address of the lawyer or agent, to the mediator and to the other parties at least five (5) days prior to the date of the mediation conference, or such shorter time as the mediator may determine. The mediation conference will be attended by the parties and/or representatives who have full authority to settle the dispute.
- 7. Mediation Brief: Prior to the mediation, each party or their representative will prepare a brief summary of the issues in the dispute setting out that party's position with respect to each issue. This summary must be delivered to the mediator and to the other parties at least five (5) days before the date of the mediation conference, or such shorter time as the mediator may determine.
- 8. Required Disclosure: Prior to the mediation, there will be complete and honest disclosure by each of the parties to the other and to the mediator of all relevant information and documents. This includes providing each other and the mediator with all information and documentation that would usually be available through the discovery process in a legal proceeding. If either party fails to make such disclosure, then any agreement reached in mediation may be set aside. Disclosure must be completed, not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the mediation, or such shorter time as the mediator may determine.
- 9. <u>Confidentiality:</u> The parties agree that all statements made and information exchanged during the course of the mediation are privileged as being settlement discussions. All such statements or information are made without prejudice to any party's legal position and without waiving any rights, and will be non-discoverable and inadmissible for any purpose in any legal proceeding except with the prior written consent of all parties and the mediator.
- 10. Mediator's Report: The mediator shall prepare a report which describes the results of the mediation. The report shall describe the resolution of any issues that have been resolved, and/or that no agreement has been reached on some or all issues as the case may be. At any time during the process, if the mediator determines that it is not possible to resolve the dispute by mediation, the mediator shall prepare a report reflecting this determination. The Mediator's Report shall be delivered to all parties, but to no other person unless otherwise required by law or court order.
- 11. <u>Costs of Mediation</u>: The Mediator's Report shall allocate the obligation to pay the costs of the mediation amongst the parties. Where the mediation fails, the allocation of the costs of the mediation shall be in the absolute discretion of the mediator. Any amount owing by an owner or tenant may be paid by the Corporation, and shall then be added to the common expenses for the unit and collectible as such, including by way of lien in accordance with the Act.
- 12. <u>Implementation of Settlement</u>: Any agreement or settlement between the parties, whether on matters of procedure or matters of substance, shall be recorded in written minutes and carried out with reasonable haste. The minutes shall be prepared immediately following the agreement or within such further time-frame as is acceptable to all parties.

ARTICLE IV ARBITRATION PROCEDURES

1. <u>Failed Mediation</u>: If the mediation is deemed to have failed according to Article III paragraph 4, the dispute shall be submitted to arbitration sixty (60) days after the Notice

dispute shall be submitted to arbitration within thirty (30) days after the Mediator's Report was delivered.

- 2. <u>Notice of Arbitration</u>: Any party to the dispute may submit the dispute to arbitration in accordance with this by-law by delivering to all other parties a Notice of Arbitration requiring the appointment of an arbitrator as described in paragraph 4 below.
- 3. <u>Application of the Arbitrations Act, 1991:</u> The provisions of the Arbitrations Act, 1991, as amended, or any successor legislation, shall apply to the arbitration except where a provision of this by-law provides otherwise.
- 4. <u>Selection of Arbitrator</u>: The parties shall agree upon an arbitrator within seven (7) days of the delivery of the Notice of Arbitration.

If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator, the arbitrator shall be appointed by the court according to the provisions of the *Arbitrations Act*, 1991, as amended, or any successor legislation.

The arbitrator shall be given a copy of this by-law.

- 5. <u>Time and Place for Arbitration</u>: The arbitrator shall set the date, time and place for the arbitration hearing after consultation with the parties. The arbitration hearing shall be scheduled for the earliest date which is reasonably suitable to all parties.
- 6. <u>Arbitration Brief:</u> Each party shall deliver to the other parties and to the arbitrator no later than five (5) days prior to the date of the arbitration hearing, written statements setting out the issues in dispute, the party's position on each issue, and the relief sought.
- 7. Required Disclosure: The parties shall exchange all documents on which they will rely at the arbitration no later than seven (7) days prior to the arbitration hearing. Documents not produced within that time frame may only be used at the arbitration hearing with the leave of the arbitrator.
- 8. Procedural Matters: The parties agree that the arbitrator shall rule on all procedural matters arising before the arbitration hearing date. All such matters shall be submitted to the arbitrator in writing. The arbitrator shall provide a brief written award within three (3) days of the receipt of the parties' submissions. No hearing on these matters shall be permitted, unless specifically requested by the arbitrator.
- 9. Rules of Evidence: The arbitrator shall apply the laws of evidence as if the hearing were a trial in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice, subject to the following provisions:
 - a) The arbitrator shall accept oral or written evidence as the arbitrator in its discretion considers proper, whether admissible in a court of law or not.
 - b) The parties may rely on photocopies of originals.
 - c) No notice under the *Evidence Act* is required for business records.
 - d) Expert reports, if any, shall be delivered to the other party at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the arbitration hearing.
 - e) The parties shall be permitted to present oral evidence only if a signed will-say statement is delivered to all parties at least seven (7) days prior to the arbitration hearing date. The will-say statement must include the name and address of the witness as well as an outline of the evidence to be presented. If this requirement is not met, the oral evidence will only be permitted with the leave of the arbitrator.
- 10. Offers to Settle: Rule 49 of the Rules of Civil Procedure or its successor, applies to these proceedings subject to the following provision: An offer to be effective must be delivered to the other party or parties no later than seven (7) days before the date of the arbitration hearing.

- 11. <u>Costs of Arbitration</u>: The arbitrator shall allocate the obligation to pay the costs of the arbitration amongst the parties. The allocation shall be at the absolute discretion of the arbitrator; however, the arbitrator in making an award of costs shall consider the conduct of the parties including the efforts of the parties to proceed with haste, and any offers to settle. Any amounts held to be payable by an owner or a tenant may be paid by the Corporation and then shall be added to the common expenses for the unit and collectible as such, including by way of lien in accordance with the Act.
- 12. <u>Arbitral Award:</u> The arbitrator shall render a decision, together with written reasons, as soon as reasonably possible, and in any case, no later than thirty (30) days after the final submissions of the parties. The arbitrator shall deliver a copy of the decision and reasons to each of the parties to the dispute. The arbitrator's award may include an award of costs, payable by any party or parties to any other party or parties, incurred in relation to the arbitration and/or prior mediation.
- 13. <u>Appeal</u>: The arbitrator's award shall be binding, except that there is an appeal to the Ontario Superior Court of Justice from an arbitrator's award on a question of law or a question of mixed law and fact.

ARTICLE V COMMON EXPENSES

Any amounts owing to the corporation by an owner, as a result of any mediation or arbitration, shall be added to the common expenses for the owner's unit.

ARTICLE VI MISCELLANEOUS

- 1. <u>Invalidity</u>: The invalidity of any part of this by-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance thereof.
- 2. <u>Waiver</u>: No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this by-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- 3. <u>Headings</u>: The headings in the body of this by-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
- 4. <u>Alterations</u>: This by-law or any part thereof may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Declaration.

The foregoing by-law is hereby passed by the directors and confirmed by the owners pursuant to the Condominium Act, 1998 of Ontario.

DATED this 18 day of March, 2003.

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

Print Name: Dan River Print Title: President

I have authority to bind the Corporation

Version 4 - June 28, 2002

© All rights reserved.

This document was prepared by Nelligan O'Brien Payne LLP for CCC #443 based on a thorough review of all relevant documentation and the specific circumstances of this condominium. This document may not be appropriate for another condominium.

Please note: The form from which this document was prepared is regularly revised and updated

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

BY-LAW NO, 11

BE IT ENACTED as By-Law No. 11 of CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443 (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation") as follows:

WHEREAS:

- The City of Ottawa is replacing the culvert under Des Epinettes Avenue and requires a permanent easement over a parcel of land containing 77 square metres owned by the Corporation (the "Property") adjacent to Des Epinettes Avenue and shown as Parcel 1 on the sketch attached hereto as Schedule "A" (the "Culvert Easement Lands").
- The City of Ottawa requires a temporary construction easement over the lands surrounding the Culvert Easement Lands and shown as Parcel 2 on the sketch annexed hereto as Schedule "A" (the "Construction Easement Lands").
- The Corporation wishes to grant a permanent easement to the City of Ottawa over the Culvert Easement Lands and a temporary construction easement to the City of Ottawa over the Construction Easement Lands as shown on Schedule "A" in order to allow for the construction, replacement, and maintenance of a culvert under Des Epinettes Avenue.
- The aforesaid easement must be authorized by by-law pursuant to Section 21 of the Act;
- The By-law can also fulfill the requirements of Sections 97 and 98 of the Act respecting approval of all common element modifications related to the permanent culvert easement and the temporary construction easement on the property.

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

All words used herein which are defined in the *Condominium Act*, 1998 (as amended from time to time), or the Regulations thereunder or any successor thereto, ("the Act") shall have ascribed to them the meanings set out in the Act.

ARTICLE II AUTHORITY FOR EASEMENT AND RELATED WORK

(1) In accordance with Section 21 of the Act, the Corporation is authorized to enter into an easement, on terms satisfactory to the Board, with the City of Ottawa, in order to allow

for the construction, replacement and maintenance of the culvert under Des Epinettes Avenue on the following portions of the property.

- Permanent culvert easement shown as Parcel 1 on the attached Schedule "A"; and
- Temporary construction easement shown as Parcel "2" on the attached Schedule "A".
- (2) All related modifications to the common elements are also hereby approved.

ARTICLE V MISCELLANEOUS

- (1) <u>Invalidity</u>: The invalidity of any part of this by-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability or effect of the balance thereof.
- (2) <u>Waiver</u>: No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this by-law shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.
- (3) <u>Headings</u>: The headings in the body of this by-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted for convenience of reference only.
- (4) <u>Alterations</u>: This by-law or any part thereof may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Declaration.
- (5) <u>Preparation:</u> This document was prepared in the year 2013 by Nelligan O'Brien Payne LLP in conjunction with the corporation.

The foregoing by-law is hereby passed by the Directors and confirmed by the owners pursuant to the *Condominium Act* of Ontario.

DATED this 7th day of april , 2012

CARLETON CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 443

Name: O. Mac Ewen

Title: MANAGER.
I have authority to hind the

I have authority to bind the Corporation.

SCHEDULE "A"

